

THE BHARAT SCOUTS AND GUIDES, NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS

Minutes of the Virtual Meeting of the National Programme Committee of the Bharat Scouts and Guides held on 23.07.2021 (Friday) at 3.00 P.M.

The Virtual Meeting of National Programme Committee of the Bharat Scouts and Guides was held on 23.07.2021 (Friday) at 15.00 hrs. Members present are attached at **Annexure-'A'.** The meeting was held under the Chairmanship of Dr. H.P. Chhetri, Chief Commissioner (Scouts).

The Meeting started with BSG Prayer. Mrs Darshana Pawaskar, Jt. Director of Guides (Prog. & Trg.) welcomed the Chairperson and Co-Chairperson of the Committee, special invitees and all the members. The convenor invited Dr. H.P. Chhetri, Chief Commissioner (S) and Chairperson of National Programme Committee to take over the Chair. Accordingly Dr. H.P Chhetri took the Chair and welcomed all the special invitees and members present. In his opening remarks, the chairperson congratulated all the State Associations and Scouts and Guides of the Country for their remarkable services rendered during the pandemic period. He appealed to all the State Association to extend their support to the National Headquarters to achieve the target of BSG towards qualitative and quantitative growth. He further advised the convenor to start the meeting agenda wise.

The convenor requested the members to stand up and observe one minute silent prayer to pay respect to the departed soul to the members of the organization who had gone home in the recent time.

Agenda 1:- Confirmation of the Minutes of the last Virtual Meeting of the National Programme Committee held on 16thMarch, 2021.

The Minutes of the last Virtual Meeting of the National Programme Committee held on 16thMarch 2021 was circulated to the members well in advance and confirmed by the house duly proposed by Shri Pankaj Gupta, SOC(S) Himachal Pradesh seconded by Shri K. Kamalakannan, SOC(S), Tamilnadu State and Ms. Anamika Das, SOC(G) respectively.

Agenda 2:- Business Arising (Action Taken Report).

Action taken report on the last Virtual Meeting of the National Programme Committee held on 16th March, 2021 was circulated to the members well in advance. Ms. Anamika Das, SOC(G), BSG Odisha enquired about the pending Prime Minister Award and Upa-Rashtrapati Award Rally. Sh. Amar B. Chettri, Jt. Director of Scouts & Convenor of the meeting informed that Hon'ble President BSG met Hon'ble Prime Minister of India and had apprised about the pending issues of the Rally but NHQ is yet to receive any confirmation so far. Regarding Upa-Rashtrapati Award Rally, he informed the house that letter is sent to Upa-Rashtrapati Bhavan Secretariat and a positive response is

received. Upa-Rashtrapati Bhavan Secretariat enquired the matter with Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Govt. of India and further Ministry has directed BSG to submit the documents pertaining to Upa-Rashtrapati Award scheme. BSG had already submitted required documents to the Ministry and expect that the pending case will be considered and Upa-Rashtrapati Award Rally will be confirmed soon. The ATR of the previous meeting held on 16.03.2021 is confirmed duly proposed by Shri Pankaj Gupta, SOC(S) Himachal Pradesh seconded by Shri K. Kamalakannan, SOC(S), Tamilnadu State and Ms. Anamika Das, SOC (G) respectively.

Agenda 03:- Review of Youth Programme under New Education Policy

Sh. Amar B. Chettri, Jt. Director of Scouts & Convenor informed the house that the draft documents on review of youth programme under New Education Policy was circulated to all the members of the Committee but no feed-back is received from any of the members. He also informed that Hon'ble Chief National Commissioner had constituted a drafting Committee to review youth programme under New Education Policy under the Chairmanship of State Chief Commissioner, BSG Uttarakhand State. Mrs. Darshana Pawaskar, Jt. Director of Guides is coordinating the same from NHQ. He invited Ms. Darshana Pawaskar, Joint Director of Guides (Prog. & Trg.) to share the outcome. Mrs. Darshana Pawaskar, Jt. Director of Guides shared the draft presentation on alignment of Youth Programme with the New Education Policy of the Govt. of India. She further informed that the Committee has a virtual meeting for about 50 times in drafting the documents to align the youth programme with NEP. She invited suggestions, if any so that the same may be placed before the ensuing National Programme & Training Review Committee, Rules Committee and National Executive Committee for approval. Mrs. Anamika Das, SOC(G), BSG Odisha State appreciated the effort of the National Headquarters and drafting committee and raised the issues about overlapping in age criteria and requested to review the same. She also insisted that all SDGs may be incorporated in the syllabus instead of fixing the particular goals. She said that opportunity may be given to the children to select the SDG goal as per their choice and undertake the project. Mrs. Preeti Anand, SOC(G) of BSG Delhi State and one of the member of NEP drafting committee replied that there is no SDG Goal for Cub/Bulbul category and cannot include all SDG goal for age group 10-14 years. Sh. G. Parmeshwar, SOC(S), BSG Telangana State supported the views of Mrs. Anamika Das, SOC(G), Odisha State. Further Mr. G. Parmeshwar, SOC(S), Telangana State informed that the drafting committee needs to study more on the aspect and also review age criteria. He further suggested that one special session on Alignment of Youth Programme under New Education policy to be organized and review thoroughly with trainer's and one more sitting is required with SOC's & STC's. It is also suggested that NHQ may select and nominate capable people, take feed-back and consolidate. Shri Krishnaswamy.R, Executive Director, BSG/NTC informed the house that efforts were made to prepare the draft and requested the States to provide the suggestions by Email to NHQ before 31st July, 2021 and appealed to contribute for the development work on draft documents. Mrs Darshana Pawaskar, Jt. Director of Guides agreed to the suggestions

of Executive Director and appeal all the members to submit the suggestions by mail which will be placed before the other committees of BSG.

Agenda 4:- President Scout/Guide/Rover/Ranger Certificate Examination:

Shri Amar B.Chettri, Jt. Director of Scouts & Convenor informed the house that the draft guidelines for President Scout/Guide/Rover/Ranger Certificate Examination was circulated to all the members by mail but no any feedback or suggestions is received from the members. He further highlighted to recollect the discussions in the meeting held on 16.03.2021 in which Hon'ble Chief National Commissioner briefed the house about the pending issues of President Scout/Guide/Rover/Ranger Certificate and re-starting the President Certificate Examination. Mrs. Anamika Das, SOC (G) suggested that in place of SOC's, Regional Headquarters of BSG should be authorized to conduct the testing camp. Mrs. Sheela Joseph, SOC (G) of Kerala State suggested that number of awardees to be increased from 2000 and 120 respectively. She also suggested that a participation certificate may be issued from NHQ who appears for the National Level Certificate Examination. Shri K. Kamlakannan, SOC(S), Tamilnadu State requested NHQ to release a question bank as a guidance book for preparation to appear the National Certificate Examination. Shri G.Parmeshwar, SOC(S) Telangana State requested that NHQ may circulate the soft copy of documents for the State level S/G/R/R Certificate Examination. Shri Raj Kumar Kaushik, Director BSG replied that as per A.P.R.O, Chief National Commissioner is the final authority to fix the guidelines and issue suitable directions pertaining to Rashtrapati Award. The latest guidelines is drafted after consultation with the Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Govt. of India. The 3rd party will conduct President S/G/R/R Certificate Examination and NHQ will not intervene in the process of 3rd party examination. Shri Amar B. Chettri, Jt. Director of Scouts replied that 90% work on State Level Examination is completed and will be shared with the State Association. Same procedure of documentation in the State level examination will be followed by all. Mr. G. Parmweshwar, SOC(S) Telenaga raised that if the number of candidate is less than opportunity be given to participate in the testing process with neighboring State Association. Shri Brajesh Kumar Ram, SOC(S) S.E. Railway suggested that Merit list to be prepared at the representative basis from all the State Associations. After a lengthy discussions, the proposed draft guidelines for President Scout/Guide/Rover/Ranger Certificate Examination is unanimously approved by the house duly proposed by Ms. Anamika Das, SOC(G) Odisha State seconded by Shri G. Parmeshwar, SOC(S) Telangana and Shri K. Kamalakannan, SOC(S) Tamilnadu and Shri R.S. Hanspal, SOC(S) Uttar Pradesh State respectively.

Agenda 5:- Update on Online Youth Membership Registration System (OYMS):

Mrs Darshana Pawaskat, Jt. Director of Guides shared the updates on OYMS region wise and appealed the house to initiate to complete the task at the earliest to achieve the target. She also highlighted the importance of OYMS and UID number. Without UID number, there will be no provision to participate in the training courses, youth programmes and President Certificate

Examination in future. She requested the States to contact respective Regional Headquarters as well as NHQ in case of any inconvenience in the registration system.

Agenda 6:- Online youth Cycle-advancement of youth Programme:

Shri Arup Sarkar, Dy. Director of Scouts (Boy Programme) informed the house that NHQ is going to launch online progressive advancement scheme for all six section very shortly i.e. For Cubs/Bulbuls- Pratham Charan to Chaturtha Charan, for Scouts/Guides- Pravesh to Rajya Puraskar and for Rovers/Rangers-Pravesh to Rajya Puraskar. He requested all the States to motivate the youth to join the virtual programme initiate for the young people and register as the provision of first come first serve basis will be implemented. He also congratulated all the State Association for deputing young people to participate in the virtual programmes organized by NHQ/RHQ.

Agenda 7:- Recommendations of the Meeting of National Youth Committee held on 16.07.2021.

The Convenor appraised the house about the formation of National Youth Committee of the Bharat Scouts and Guides as per provision in the rules. He informed the house that as per the rules, the National Youth Committee will suggest innovative youth programmes to the National Programme Committee for its approval. He introduced Shri Kumar Ritesh Agarwal of West Bengal State being nominated by Hon'ble Chief National Commissioner as the Chairperson of National Youth Committee for the existing term of the National Council. He also introduced Ms. Ayantika Kundu, Co- Chairperson of National Youth Committee and requested the Chairperson and Co-Chairperson of the National Youth Committee to share the recommendations of the meeting of the National Youth Committee held on 16th July 2021. Shri Kumar Ritesh Agarwal thanked NHQ for giving him the opportunity to lead the National Youth Committee. Ms. Ayantika Kundu, Co-Chair, NYC read out the minutes of the 4th Meeting of the National Youth Committee held on 16th July, 2021 and appraised the house about various innovative programmes proposed to be organized. Shri Kumar Ritesh Agarwal, Chairperson of NYC highlighted the contribution made by the National Youth Committee in organizing various online programmes. Both the Chairperson and Co-Chairperson appealed to ensure formation of State Youth Committee. The house appreciated the efforts of National Youth Committee and wish Mr. Ritesh Agarwal for the election to World Youth Advisor. Shri Amar B. Chettri, Jt. Director of Scouts thanked both the Chairperson and Co-Chair for supporting NHQ in coordinating to organize various virtual youth programmes and appreciated their effort. Mr. Amar B. Chettri, JD(S) again requested the State Associations to form the State Youth Committee and District Youth Committee if the same is yet to be formed and comply with the provisions in the rules of the association and provide opportunity in empowering the youth. He also insisted to nominate the youth in various State and District level Committees as per provisions envisaged in the rules of the Bharat Scouts and Guides. He further requested the members to forward the name of Chairperson and Co-Chairperson of the State Youth Committee to the National Headquarters who are yet to submit the names so that NHQ can include these young people in the National Youth Committee. He frequently insisted to take up this matter on priority.

Agenda 8:- Any Other Matter with the Permission of the Chair:

With due permission of the Chair, the Convenor proceeded with the following points under any other matter and discussed as follows:

(A) PMSC & Upa-Rashtrapati Award Revised Guidelines:

The convenor invited Ms. Darshana Pawaskar, Joint Director(G) for the updates on the subject. Ms. Darshana Pawaskar, Joint Director(G), informed the house that NHQ is preparing revised syllabus for PMSC and Upa- Rashtrapati Award Competition. She appealed the house to nominate volunteers for the work and help NHQ. Shri Amar B. Chettri, JDS further requested the house to nominate suitable persons/trainers to assist NHQ in drafting the syllabus. He also requested the house to empower the respective Assistant Director of the Regions to nominate suitable person from the State for the work on PMSC and Upa-Rashtrapati Award. The house unanimously agreed that Assistant Directors can suitably recommend and has no object for the same.

(B) PTTC, Beginners Course & Membership Growth:

Shri Arup Sarkar, DDBP briefed the achievement of States on PTTC Project and congratulated the achiever of Champion Level. He also informed the house that BSG is going to launch a hero level project on PTTC for Scouts and Rovers as introduced by WOSM. He appealed the States to motivate more young people to take up PPTC Project and create impact in the community.

He further informed that total 15249 nos. of members has completed the Online Beginners Course. He informed about the appointment of State Growth Coordinators and their progress of working. He requested the State to support the growth coordinators and extend their help to achieve the target on membership growth in the organization.

(C) Social Media:

Mrs. Darshana Pawaskar, JDG briefed the house about the activeness on Social Media for the visibility of the organization. She informed the house about different Social Media Platforms in which BSG is working and showed the figures of participants in different platforms. She appealed the house to motivate the Scouts and Guides to subscribe, share the post uploaded on BSG YouTube Channel, BSG Facebook, Instragram and Re-post & Re-Twit on Twitter to reach out to more members which is very much essential on the present day world towards visibility.

(D) Participation in Events & Training – DDGLT:

Ms. M.N. Machamma, DDGLT highlighted the State wise details of participation in the Virtual Events conducted at Regional and National Level from April, 2021 to June, 2021. She also informed the house about the upcoming events.

(E) Task Force for Drafting Syllabus for Specially Abled Children:

Shri Amar B. Chettri, JDS informed the house that BSG is in a process to constitute a Task Force for Drafting Syllabus for Specially Abled Children. He informed that not a single State has recommended names for the task as committed in the previous meeting. He appealed the States to nominate suitable name from the State for the purpose. He also requested the house to empower the respective Assistant Director of the Regions to nominate suitable person from the State for the purpose. The house unanimously agreed that Assistant Directors can suitably recommend and has no object for the same. Ms. Sheela Jospeh, SOC (G) Kerala State informed that the State has one suitable trainer for the work. Joint Director of Scouts suggested her to submit the name to Assistant Director, Southern Region so that she will further forward to NHQ.

(F) POT Project at NTC:

Shri Krishnaswamy R, Executive Director informed that BSG, NTC is working on the project **POT** (**Project on a Tree**) started by Late G. Rangarao former Director of BSG in the year 1990. He also informed the house that NTC will plant a fund earning tree on its premises for which any member can donate Rs. 500/- for a tree which will be utilized for taking care of plant and growth of the tree. He also informed that NTC has received 170 members from ISGF who had donated for the **POT** project. He appealed the members of the house to donate for the noble cause and motivate other members also.

(G) Online Basic Course:

Mr. S. S. Ray, Asst. Director, Northern Region highlighted the plan made of NHQ for online Basic Courses which will facilitate the State Association. He informed that BSG will shortly launch a new Website for the Basic Courses through which the candidates can cover all the theory parts related to Basic Courses which will be a uniformed process of training and it will be time saving also. The admin right will be given to the State association. The house unanimously accepted the proposal and appreciated the initiative of the National Headquarters.

(H) IRF & SSD Dues:

Mr. Anand Kumar, Accounts Officer highlighted about the pending dues of the States against IRF, Flag Day Stickers & SSD and appealed the house to contact with concern authorities of the State to clear the dues at the earliest. Jt. Director of Scouts appealed the house to look into the matter of pending dues and requested to initiate its early remittance.

(I) Celebration of 10 years of MOP

Ms. Anamika Das, SOC(G), Odisha State suggested that BSG should plan to Celebrate 10 Years of MoP as APR has celebrated it in a grand manner. She also inform the house that Odisha State can host such type of big event. Mr. Amar B. Chettri, JD(S) welcome the proposal of Ms. Anamika Das and informed the house that an email was already sent to all the MOP Coordinators to

plan and propose a viable programme at District or State level but no response is received from any so far. NHQ is already in a process to organize MoP Jamboree at the end of 2021 or in the beginning of 2022 which will be hosted by BSG, N.F. Railway State. The Hon'ble General Manager of N F railway has already given his virtual consent for the same. He submitted his proposal to Odisha State to organize one big gathering to commemorate 10 years of MoP. Ms. Anamika Das, SOC (G) Odisha accepted the proposal and confirmed that details will be submitted to NHQ shortly.

Mr. Amar B. Chettri, JD(S) and Convenor of the Meeting requested Dr. K.P. Mishra, Hon'ble Vice President to bless the house. Dr. K.P. Mishra, Vice President of BSG blessed the members of the house and said that SOCs are the backbone of the organization. The whole management of working system of the State is dependent on the activeness of the SOCs. He congratulated all the SOCs of the States for the efforts put during the pandemic. Mr. Amar B. Chettri, JD(S) thanked Dr. K.P. Mishra, Vice President for his blessing and invited Dr. H.P. Chhetri, Chief Commissioner (Scouts) & Chairperson of the Committee offer the Chairman's remarks. Dr. H.P. Chhetri, Chief Commissioner (Scouts) and Chairman of the Committee appreciated the fruitful discussions in the meeting and completed all the agenda points very successfully. Mr. Amar B. Chettri, JDS thanked Dr. H.P. Chhetri, Chairman of the meeting for his inspirable words.

Shri R.K. Kaushik, Director BSG thanked the house for all the cooperation provided to organize the meeting successfully. The Director in his closing remarks congratulated all the SOCs for their support and activeness shown during the Pandemic time. He informed that the drafting committee of BSG on alignment of Youth programme under New Education Policy has worked very hard for preparation of the draft documents. He suggested the State to invite SANDHAN at State Level and suggestions can be sent by email to NHQ and ensured that the draft will be placed before the appropriate committees of BSG. He informed that APR of WOSM has asked BSG for a 10 minutes video representation on Communication & Social Media which is itself a big achievement for the BSG and it happened due to the efforts made by the States of BSG. He congratulated National Youth Committee for the dedication shown and working actively. He requested the State Officials to motivate the Scouts/Guides to subscribe the You-Tube Channel of BSG and be active on other social media sites of BSG for more visibility. He informed that BSG is going to launch a facebook like website. The name is proposed as Scout book for now. He requested the members to suggest a good name for the website and be active on the platform. He also informed that President Certificate Examination will be conducted very soon. He appealed the house to complete OYMS at the earliest. Last but not the least, he thanked all the States for their support and efforts put during the Covid Pandemic period which has given more visibility to the organisation.

The meeting came to an end with a vote of thank to the Chair and all the member present followed by National Anthem.

(Dr. H.P.CHHETRI)
CHIEF COMMISSIONER (SCOUTS)

& CHAIRPERSON

(AMAR B.CHÉTTRI)
JT.DIRECTOR OF SCOUTS
& CONVENOR

MEMBERS PRESENT:

1.	DR. H. P. CHHETRI	-CHIEF COMMISSIONER (SCOUT)	CHAIRPERSON
2.		-CHIEF COMMISSIONER (GUIDE)	CO-CHAIRPERSON
3.		-VICE PRESIDENT, BSG	SPECIAL INVITEE
4.		TIONAL COMMISSIONER (S) ADULT RESOURCE	SPECIAL INVITEE
5.		ERNATIONAL COMMISSIONER(G)	SPECIAL INVITEE
6.	SHRI RAJ KUMAR KAUSHIK	-DIRECTOR	SPECIAL INVITEE
7.		-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/DDSLT	MEMBER
8.	MS. DARSHANA PAWASKAR	-JOINT DIRECTOR OF GUIDE (PROG. & TRG.)	MEMBER
9.	SHRI ARUP SARKAR	-DY. DIRECTOR OF SCOUT (BOY PROGRAMME)	MEMBER
10.	MS. SUREKHA SHRIVASTAVA	-DY. DIRECTOR	MEMBER
11.	MS. M.N. MACHAMMA	-DDGLT	MEMBER
12.	SHRI BABLU GOSWAMI	-ASSISTANT DIRECTOR I/C EASTERN REGION	SPECIAL INVITEE
	MS. SHIVANGI SAXENA	-ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, C.REGION & W. REGION	
14.	SHRI. S. S. RAY	-ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, N. REGION	SPECIAL INVITEE
15.	SMT. KUMUD MEHRA	-ASSISTANT DIRECTOR , S. REGION	SPECIAL INVITEE
16.	SHRI ANALENDRA SARMA	-ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, N.E. REGION	SPECIAL INVITEE
17.	SHRI MAHINDER SHARMA	-ROC(S), N. REGION	SPECIAL INVITEE
18.	SHRI ANAND KUMAR	-ACCOUNT OFFICER	SPECIAL INVITEE
19.	SHRI DEEPAK MEHRA	-SUPPLY SERVICE OFFICER	SPECIAL INVITEE
20.	SHRI RITESH AGARWAL - CI	HAIRPERSON NATIONAL YOUTH COMMITTEE	SPECIAL INVITEE
21.	MS. AYANTIKA KUNDU -CC	D-CHAIRPERSON NATIONAL YOUTH COMMITTEE	SPECIAL INVITEE
22.	MS. KARUNA MASIH	-CHHATTISGARH	MEMBER
23.	MS. PREETI ANAND	-DELHI	MEMBER
24.	MS. G. ANANTHALAXMI	-TELANGANA	MEMBER
25.	SHRI JOHN TOCHIMONG	-NAGALAND	MEMBER
26.	SHRI RAVI KANT SHARMA	-N.C. RAILWAY	MEMBER
27.	SHRI SIDDIKA HUSSAIN	-N.F. RAILWAY	MEMBER
28.	SHRI YESWANT SINARI	-GOA	MEMBER
29.	SHRI G.SHANMUGA NACHIYAR	TAMILNADU	MEMBER
30.	SHRI ALLOYSIUS RAJ ALEXANDER	R -S.C. RAILWAY	MEMBER
31.	SHRI RAVINDRAN M		MEMBER
32.	SHRI M. PRABHAKARA BHAT	-KARNATAKA	MEMBER
33.	SHRI KHAGESH DAS	-N.F. RAILWAY	MEMBER
34.	SHRI BALBEER CHAND	-N. RAILWAY	MEMBER
35.	SHRI PANKAJ GUPTA	-HIMACHAL PRADESH	MEMBER
36.	SHRI NIRAJ CHANDRA MISHRA	-E.C. RAILWAY	MEMBER
37.	SHRI M.MATHINARAN	-S. RAILWAY	MEMBER
38.	SHRI C. L. CHANDRAKAR		MEMBER
39.	SHRI PROBODH RANJAN BISWAS	S -WEST BENGAL	MEMBER
40.	ZODINTHARI RALTE	-MIZORAM	MEMBER
41.	SHRI PRAJAKT B. JAMKAR	-MAHARASHTRA	MEMBER
42.	MS. ASRAF ZAMALI	- S.E. RAILWAY	MEMBER
43.	MS. CATHERINE NONGKSEH	-MEGHALAYA	MEMBER

44.	MS. SAVITA PANDEY SHRI HARIDUT SHARMA	-NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY	MEMBER
			MEMBER
46.	SHRI RANJEET SHARMA	-NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY	MEMBER
47.	SHRI P.SRINIVASA ROA	-ANDHRA PRADESH	MEMBER
48.	MS. USHA CHUNI	-ANDHRA PRADESH -JAMMU AND KASHMIR	MEMBER
	SHRI KAMALAKANNAN K		MEMBER
50.	SHRI S S H ZAIDI	-KVS	MEMBER
51.	DR CHANDRASEN	-NVS	MEMBER
52.	MS. KAMINI SRIVASTAVA	-UTTAR PRADESH	MEMBER
53.	MS. MARIA FERNANDES	-GOA	MEMBER
54.	KSH. PHAJATON CHANU	-MANIPUR	MEMBER
55.	MS. SUNITHA R		MEMBER
56.	SHRI BENHUR MARIO	-MEGHALAYA -W.C. RAILWAY	MEMBER
57.	SMT. B. NORONHA	-W.C. RAILWAY	MEMBER
			MEMBER
59.	SHRI A K CHOUBEY	-W.C. RAILWAY	MEMBER
60.	SHRI V.K.BANSAL	-HARYANA	MEMBER
61.	SHRI BRAJESH KUMAR RAM	-S.E. RAILWAY	MEMBER
62.	MS. MAMTA SHARMA ADHIKARI	-SIKKIM	MEMBER
63.	MS. VIMEZHONU TETSO	-NAGALAND	MEMBER
64.	MS. ROOMA SAPRA	-HARYANA	MEMBER
65.	MS. ANAMIKA DAS	-ODISHA	MEMBER
66.	SHRI G. PARAMESHWAR	-TELANGANA	MEMBER
67.	SHRI K.SHANMUGUM	-PUDUCHERRY	MEMBER
68.	SHRI R S HANSPAL	AYA -MADHYA PRADESH -W.C. RAILWAY -HARYANA -S.E. RAILWAY -SIKKIM -NAGALAND -HARYANA -ODISHA -TELANGANA -PUDUCHERRY -UTTAR PRADESH -KERALA	MEMBER
69.	SHEELA JOSEPH	-KERALA	MEMBER
70.	SHRI AMAR B. CHETTRI	-JOINT DIRECTOR OF SCOUTS (PROG. $\&$ TRG.) $\&$	CONVENOR